Agreement

Between

Barrington Board of Education

And

Barrington Education Association

<u>For</u>

Collectively Negotiated Contract

For The Period Of

July 1, 2022

<u>Through</u>

June 30, 2025

Table of Contents

Preamble		
Article I	Recognition	
Article II	Management Clause	
Article III	Liaison Meetings	
Article IV	Grievance Procedure	
Article V	Teacher, Custodian and Secretary Rights	
Article VI	Association Rights Teachers, Custodians and Secretaries	
Article VII	School Calendar	
	Twelve (12) Month Secretary Holidays and Custodian Holidays	
Article VIII	Teacher Hours of Work and Teaching Load	
Article IX	Secretaries Hours of Work	
	Twelve (12) Month Secretary Vacations	
Article X	Custodian Hours of Work, Vacations, Uniforms	
Article XI	Teacher Facilities	
Article XII	Teacher Employment	
Article XIII	Voluntary Transfer and Reassignments	
Article XIV	Student Discipline and Teacher Protection	
Article XV	Leave	
Article XVI	No Strike Clause	
Article XVII	Tuition Reimbursement Teachers	
Article XVIII	Reimbursement Upon Retirement	
Article XIX	Procedure for Withholding Increments and Salary Adjustments-Secretaries	
Article XX	Agency Shop Representation	
Article XXI	Provisions	
Salary Guides	2022-2025	
	Longavity Schedula Taschers	

Longevity Schedule - Teachers Teacher, Ten (10) and Twelve (12) Month Secretary, and Custodian ExtraCurricular Compensation Guide Sports Coaching Positions Compensation Guide

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, The Board of Education is required by law to negotiate with its employees as to the terms and conditions of employment and grievances; and the parties hereto through negotiations in good faith, have reached agreement on all such matters and such agreement is hereby reduced to writing, as required by law. This agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties. All side bar and/or past practices not submitted for inclusion in this contract shall cease to exist. This agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2022 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2025, but provisions herein shall control until a new agreement is entered thereafter.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

- A. Pursuant of N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et. seq. The Borough of Barrington Board of Education ("Board") recognizes the Barrington Education Association ("Association") as the sole and exclusive representative for collective bargaining concerning the terms and conditions of employment for all personnel who have a contract, subject to the provisions and/or positions set forth below as follows:
 - 1. BCBA (Board Certified Behavior Analyst)
 - 2. Child Study Team Members (Language Specialist, Learning Disabilities Teacher Consultant, Occupational Therapist, School Psychologist, Social Worker, Speech Language Pathologist)
 - 3. Custodians
 - 4. Guidance Counselors
 - 5. Nurses
 - 6. Professional Teaching Staff
 - 7. Teacher Coach Technology Integration Specialist/BSI
 - 8. Ten (10) Month Secretaries
 - 9. Twelve (12) Month Secretaries

But excluding:

- 1. Administrative Assistant to the Business Administrator
- 2. Buildings and Grounds Supervisor
- 3. Classroom Aides (1:1 Aides)
- 4. Confidential Secretaries
- 5. Director of Curriculum and Instruction
- 6. Director of Special Education
- 7. Human Resource Generalist
- 8. I.T. Assistants
- 9. Lunch Aides
- 10. Principals
- 11. School Business Administrator
- 12. Secretary to the Board of Education
- 13. Substitute Teachers
- 14. Superintendent
- 15. Technology Coordinator

- B. Unless otherwise indicated, the term "employee" when used hereinafter in this contract, shall refer to all employees represented by the Association in the Negotiating Unit as above defined, and reference to employees shall be deemed to include both male and female, except when the context clearly limits the intent to one sex, and words used in the singular shall include words in the plural as the text so requires.
- C. Unless otherwise indicated, the term "teacher" when used hereinafter in this contract, shall refer to all certificated staff represented by the Association in the Negotiating Unit as above defined, and reference to teachers shall be deemed to include both male and female, except when the context clearly limits the intent to one sex, and words used in the singular shall include words in the plural as the text so requires.

ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE

- A. The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the application laws and regulation of the State of New Jersey, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - 1. To the executive management administrative control of the school systems, and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees;
 - 2. To hire all employees, and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions of their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion; and to promote and transfer all such employees;
 - 3. To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board;
 - 4. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, and the use of teaching aids of every kind and nature;
 - 5. To determine class schedules, the hours of instruction, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers and other employees with respect thereto, and non-teaching activities, and the terms and conditions of employment.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authorities, duties, and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof; and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith; shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this contract and then only to the extent such specific and express terms thereof are in conformance with the applicable laws and regulations of the State of New Jersey.
- Nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities and authority under the New Jersey School Law, commonly known as Title 18A, or any other national, state, county, district or local laws or regulations as they pertain to education.
 (Moved D to Article IX)

ARTICLE III LIAISON MEETINGS

A. The Association Liaison Committee shall meet a minimum of two times per school year, or more as needed, with the Superintendent and Board Liaison Committee to review and discuss school district practices and concerns.

ARTICLE IV GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definition

A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by an employee of the Barrington School System that there has been to him/her a personal loss, injury or inconvenience because of a violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of this contract or of an established policy governing employees, or an administrative decision affecting employees. A grievance, to be considered under this procedure, must be initiated by the grievant (the employee or Association) within thirty (30) days from the time the grievant knew or should have known of its occurrence.

B. Procedure

- 1. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall be conducted in private and shall include only interested parties and/or their designated or selected representatives.
- 2. Any employee who has a grievance shall discuss it first with his/her principal, (Custodian: Buildings and Grounds Supervisor), if applicable, in an attempt to resolve the matter informally at that level.
- 3. If as a result of the discussion, the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the employee within ten (10) school days, he/she shall set forth his/her grievance in writing to his/her principal (Custodian: Buildings and Grounds Supervisor) specifying:
 - a. The exact contract provision, policy or administrative decision that is being grieved.
 - b. The exact remedy being sought.
 - c. The principal shall communicate his/her decision to the employee in writing within ten (10) school days of receipt of the written grievance.
- 4. The employee may appeal the principal's decision within ten (10) school days to the Superintendent of Schools. Custodians: The employee may appeal the Buildings and Grounds Supervisor's decision within ten (10) workdays to the School Business Administrator.
 - a. The appeal to the Superintendent must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the principal as specified above and his or her dissatisfaction with the decision previously rendered. The Superintendent shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) school days. The Superintendent shall communicate his/her decision in writing to the employee and the principal.
 - b. The appeal to the School Business Administrator must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the Buildings and Grounds Supervisor as specified above and his or her dissatisfaction with the decision previously rendered. The School Business Administrator shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) workdays. The School Business Administrator shall

communicate his/her decision in writing to the employee and the Buildings and Grounds Supervisor. The employee may appeal the School Business Administrator's decision within ten (10) workdays to the Superintendent. The appeal to the Superintendent must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the School Business Administrator as specified above and his or her dissatisfaction with the decision previously rendered. The Superintendent shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) workdays. The Superintendent shall communicate his/her decision in writing to the employee and the School Business Administrator.

- 5. If the grievance is not resolved to the grievant's satisfaction, he/she, no later than ten (10) school days after receipt of the Superintendent's decision, may request a review by the Board. The request and a statement of the grievance shall be submitted in writing through the Superintendent who shall attach all related papers and forward the request to the Board. The Board, or a committee thereof, may review the grievance. The Board at its option may hold a hearing with the employee grievant, provided however, that there shall be up to three (3) hearings allowed per year for grievances from all of the BEA represented independent units. The distribution among the units shall be at BEA discretion so long as the combined total of three (3) hearings is not exceeded per year. A decision, in writing, shall be forwarded to the grievant and to the Association within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the appeal, or, if a hearing is granted, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the hearing. The referred to hearing with a board committee, if granted, shall be held within a reasonable expeditious time after receipt of the appeal notice.
- 6. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved employee to proceed to the next step.
 - a. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that step. By mutual agreement in writing, both sides may agree to "STOP THE CLOCK", at the Superintendent or Board level, on any grievance procedure where there is a justifiable reason for such action. Any such agreement reached through negotiations, accomplished by the Superintendent and the BEA grievance chairperson, will be binding on both parties until the next successor contract. Either side may open the issue at this time for further discussions. If a negotiated settlement does not occur in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed four (4) months, this section will not apply, and the "CLOCK" will resume on the first day of the fifth (5th) month unless an earlier date is indicated. Nothing in this section diminishes the right of the grievant to follow the normal grievance procedure.
 - b. It is understood that employees, shall, during and notwithstanding the pendency of any grievance, continue to observe all assignments and applicable rules and regulations of the Board until such grievance and any effect thereof shall have been fully determined.
- 7. If the employee is dissatisfied with the decision of the Board, the employee or the Association may request the appointment of an arbitrator, such request to be made known to the Superintendent no later than two (2) weeks after the decision in writing of the Board was made known to the employee or his/her representative.

- a. Except for:
 - i. A complaint of a non-tenured teacher, secretary, or custodian which arises by reason of not being re-employed, or
 - ii. A complaint by any certified personnel occasioned by appointment to or lack of appointment to, retention in or lack of retention in, any position for which tenure either is not possible or not required. Such request can be honored only if the grievant(s) and the organization representing them waive the right, if any, in writing of said grievant(s) and the organization representing them to submit the underlying dispute to any other administrative or judicial tribunal. The following procedure will be used to secure the services of an arbitrator.
- b. The Association shall file a demand to the American Arbitration Association and the parties shall be bound by the rules and procedures of the AAA in the selection and services of the arbitrator.
- c. The arbitrator shall limit himself/herself to the issues submitted to him/her and shall consider nothing else. He/She can add nothing to, nor subtract anything from the contract between the parties or any policy of the Board of Education. The recommendations of the arbitrator will be binding on both parties. Only the Board and the aggrieved and his/her representative shall be given copies of the arbitrator's report of findings and recommendations. This shall be accomplished within thirty (30) days of the completion of the arbitration hearing.
- d. <u>Costs</u>
 - i. All costs incurred by a party will be the sole responsibility of the party that incurred those costs.
 - ii. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator are the costs, which will be shared by the two parties, and such costs will be shared equally.
 - iii. If time is lost by any employee due to arbitration proceedings, that necessitates the retention of a substitute, the Board will pay only the cost of the substitute. The time lost by the employee must either be without pay or charged to personal time.
 - iv. Effort will be made to hold arbitration hearings at a convenient time and place for all interested parties.

<u>ARTICLE V</u> <u>TEACHER, CUSTODIAN, & SECRETARY RIGHTS</u>

A. Teacher Rights

 Pursuant to N.J.S.A 43:13A-1 et.seq. the Board hereby agrees that the employees of the Board shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association and its affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly elected body exercising governmental power under the law of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage, deprive or coerce any teacher in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by N.J.S.A 34:13A-1 et. seq or other laws of New Jersey, or the Constitutions of New Jersey and the United States: that it will not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association and its affiliates, collective negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or other proceeding under this contract with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.

- 2. No teacher shall be prevented from wearing pins or other inconspicuous identification of Membership in the Association or its affiliates.
- 3. Whenever any teaching staff member is required to appear before the Board or any committee or member thereof concerning any matter which could adversely affect the continuation of the teaching staff member in his/her office, position or employment or the salary or any increments pertaining thereto, he or she shall be given prior written notice of the reasons for such a meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have a person of his/her own choosing present to advise him/her during such meeting or interview.
- 4. No employee shall be disciplined, reduced in rank, reprimanded or terminated without just cause.

B. Custodian & Secretary Rights

- 1. Pursuant to Title N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1et.seq. the Board hereby agrees that employees of the Board shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association and its affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly elected body exercising governmental power under the law of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage, deprive or coerce any custodian or secretary in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by Title N.J.S.A 34:13A-1 et.seq. or other laws of New Jersey, or the Constitutions of New Jersey and the United States; that it will not discriminate against any custodian or secretary with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association and its affiliates, collective negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or other proceeding under this agreement with respect to any terms of conditions of employment.
- 2. No custodian or secretary shall be prevented from wearing pins or other inconspicuous identification of membership in the Association or its affiliates.

ARTICLE VI ASSOCIATION RIGHTS TEACHERS, CUSTODIANS & SECRETARIES

- A. The representatives of the Association and of the New Jersey Education Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property, after notifying the building principal in writing and gaining written confirmation in a timely fashion, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.
- B. The Association and its representatives may be permitted to use school buildings for meetings. (Notifying the building principal in writing and gaining approval so as not to interfere with other scheduled activities shall be deemed permission to use any school building for a meeting.) The Association shall be responsible for payment of extra maintenance and service costs in accordance with Board policy.

- C. The Association shall have, in each school building, the use of a bulletin board in each faculty lounge. Should the administration object to any posted materials, the Association agrees, after being informed, that it shall be removed.
- D. The Association shall have the right to use the inter-school mail facilities and school mail boxes as it deems necessary, with prior approval of the building principal, or other members of the administration.
- E. The Association may be permitted the right to use school facilities and equipment at reasonable times when the equipment is not otherwise in use; pending permission of the principal is secured or other members of the administrative staff. The Association will provide all materials and supplies incident to such use.

ARTICLE VII SCHOOL CALENDAR

- A. The Superintendent will develop, in consultation with administration, a tentative calendar by February 15th of each year. The calendar will be presented to the Association Officers for their review and recommendations. Recommendations will be returned to the Superintendent no longer than ten (10) school days after the calendar has been presented to the Association Officers.
- B. <u>Work Year</u> The Board reserves the right to establish and alter the school calendar between September 1st and June 30th with the following exceptions:
 - a. If Election Day is held the same week as NJEA Convention and the school is used as a polling location, Certified Staff shall work the Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday preceding Labor Day and shall not work the week of NJEA Convention;
 - b. If Election Day is not held the same week as NJEA Convention or the school is not used as a polling location, Certified Staff will work the Wednesday and Thursday preceding Labor Day;
 - c. Certified Staff shall not work the Friday preceding Labor Day, the day after Thanksgiving and Easter Monday;
 - d. The Teacher work year shall not exceed one hundred eighty six (186) days.
 - 1. <u>Certified Staff</u>
 - a. The in-school teacher work year shall be one hundred eighty six (186) workdays. Five (5) of said one hundred eighty six (186) workdays shall be full day "In-Service" days. A minimum of three (3) full day "In-Service" days shall be held before students begin the school year. One (1) of the three (3) "In-Service" days before students begin the school year will be utilized to prepare classrooms and materials, as well as review IEPs/504s. A faculty meeting may be held on this day, but will not last longer than 30 minutes. Teachers shall work their one hundred eighty-sixth (186th) workday the day after the students' last day. The remaining days will be "Pupil Contact" days.
 - b. Guidance Counselors may be required to work up to fifteen (15) days beyond the one hundred eighty six (186) day school year at their per diem rate.
 - c. With prior approval from the Director of Special Education, Child Study Team members may work up to ten (10) days beyond the one hundred eighty six (186) day school year at their per diem rate to complete any related activities to fulfill IEP requirements or any other Special Education/CST related duties.

- d. The Nurse at Avon and Woodland may work up to five (5) days in August for the purpose of reviewing medical documents and other nursing related tasks, and will be paid their per diem rate with the approval of the Superintendent.
- 2. Secretaries
 - a. Ten (10) Month Secretaries
 - i. Ten (10) Month Secretaries will work two hundred three (203) days and shall include the days when school is open and teacher in-service days.
 - Ten (10) Month Secretaries shall begin their duties five (5) working days prior to the day on which the teachers will report in September and will work five (5) days after the teachers' last day of June. The additional seven (7) days will be scheduled during the summer.
 - iii. In addition to the seven (7) scheduled days in the summer, Ten (10) Month Secretaries will be paid at their per diem rate for up to twenty-five (25) days during the summer for the purpose of preparing for the coming school year to be scheduled with the Building Principal.
 - b. <u>Twelve (12) Month Secretaries</u>
 - i. Twelve (12) Month Secretaries' work year shall be all days except: July 4th, Labor Day, NJEA Convention, Thanksgiving Holiday (Thursday/Friday), December 24th, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, President's Day, Good Friday, Easter Monday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth.
 - c. Secretaries will follow the school calendar for the week of NJEA Convention.
 - d. Secretaries will not have to report on days in which the District Offices/Buildings are closed (Holidays, Recesses, or Inclement Weather Days).
 - e. If District/School Offices are closed for inclement weather or administrative reasons, those work days will be made up when those days are rescheduled. It is expected that if District/Building Offices are open, Secretaries will report to work and those days will count toward their required number of work days during the year.
- 3. Custodians
 - All employees covered by the terms of this agreement shall not be required to work on the following holidays: July 4th, Labor Day, NJEA Convention, Thanksgiving Holiday (Thursday/Friday), December 24th, Christmas Day, New Years Eve, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, President's Day, Good Friday, Easter Monday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth.
 - b. If these holidays should fall on a usually scheduled day off for an employee, the employee shall be given an alternate day off.
 - c. If the district is closed for the week of NJEA Convention, Custodial Personnel will be given one (1) additional day off as scheduled by the Building and Grounds Supervisor.
 - d. On the last day of school preceding the Winter Break, all custodial personnel shall be dismissed two (2) hours prior to the normal end of their shift provided their duties and tasks are completed.

e. In the event New Year's Eve falls on a weekend, the Friday preceding New Year's Eve will be considered the holiday.

ARTICLE VIII TEACHING HOURS AND TEACHING LOAD

- A. It is mutually recognized by the parties that the principle of the forty (40) hour normal work week cannot be interpreted literally. Nothing contained herein prohibits or limits the right of the Board to assign the extra duties normally associated with the profession.
- B. It is the professional responsibility of each individual teacher as well as the Board to provide the highest quality educational program praticable for every boy and girl in the school district. This includes:
 - 1. Required careful daily preparation
 - 2. Required attendance at staff meetings
 - 3. Participation in activities of the school such as:
 - a. Open houses
 - b. P.T.A. meetings
 - c. Public performances of children in plays, concerts, athletic activities or other extra curricular activities
 - d. All certified teaching staff members will attend a mandatory five (5) evening events/conferences over the course of the year. The maximum duration of time spent at such events shall not exceed ten (10) hours per year per staff member. The events shall consist of Back to School Night, two (2) parent conferences, the Holiday Show for Elementary Teachers and either the Winter or Spring Concert for Middle School Teachers, and one (1) additional event of the staff member's choice. An early dismissal of 12:45 pm shall be scheduled on two (2) days of evening parent conferences.

C. Teacher Hours

- 1. Teachers shall not be required to report earlier than one-half (½) hour to the start of school. Teachers must remain thirty (30) minutes after the close of the school day.
- 2. Classes in all schools may not be scheduled to start before 8:15 A.M. or scheduled to end later than 3:30 P.M. Student school day shall be no longer than 6.5 hours.
- 3. Teaching Staff not listed below in this section will report to school by fifteen (15) minutes prior to the scheduled start of the school day, and remain until thirty (30) minutes after the close of the school day.
- 4. Child Study Team Members will work the same hours as Teachers.
- 5. In the event that double sessions are deemed necessary, the foregoing will not apply.
- 6. Teachers shall work a half day the day preceding Thanksgiving and Winter Break.
- 7. Teachers shall be permitted to leave ten (10) minutes after pupils have been dismissed on the following days:
 - a. days immediately preceding a holiday,
 - b. Fridays,

- c. days when Teachers are required to return to the school for the Holiday Show, conferences and any other similar type evening functions,
- d. days when Teachers who are on a field trip and do not have a duty free lunch (after pupils that they have previously been responsible for on the field trip have been dismissed),
 - i. Teachers will be compensated the non-instructional hourly rate for hours worked consecutively beyond contract hours for the purposes of chaperoning school events.
- e. inclement weather days (inclement weather will refer to weather conditions that are more severe than normal such as but not limited to snow storms, excessive rain storms, icing conditions, etc.).
 - i. The Head Teacher must remain on inclement weather days and shall be permitted to leave once all pupils have left school grounds, or upon approval from an Administrator.
- 8. In the event students are dismissed early on the last day of school, teachers shall be entitled to a sixty (60) minute lunch commencing ten (10) minutes after all pupils have been dismissed.
- 9. Delayed openings for inclement weather are the same for teaching staff as they are for students.
- 10. Last day of school for teachers, teachers are permitted to leave once all school duties are completed, school room is closed out, and the principal has signed close out documents.

D. Meetings

- 1. Teachers may be required to remain after the end of the instructional day for the purpose of attending faculty or other professional meetings up to three (3) per month.
 - a. Meetings will begin at 3:20 and last until 4:05, except for two per year can extend to 4:35 pm.
 - i. All early dismissals for the purpose of Inservice will last until 4:30 pm with the exception of Friday Inservices, which may go until 3:30 pm.
 - b. Notice of extended meetings must be given at least seventy two (72) hours in advance.
 - c. A tentative meeting schedule will be provided by administration to staff at the opening day orientation.
 - d. Notice of any changes to the schedule will be given seven (7) days in advance, except in cases of emergency.

E. Lunches

- 1. All teachers shall have a duty-free lunch period of at least forty (40) minutes duration. Child Study Team members will have a forty (40) minute duty-free lunch. This privilege is subject to emergency situations. The Superintendent can change the lunch time length or scheduling so long as this paragraph is complied with and the overall length of the work day is not increased.
 - a. Teachers may leave the building after they have signed out during their scheduled duty-free lunch period.

F. Preparation Time

- 1. The guaranteed minimum preparation time for teachers shall be two hundred (200) minutes per week.
 - a. Child Study Team Members and certificated staff without teaching assignments are excluded from guaranteed preparation time.
 - b. For teachers assigned to more than one building, travel time between buildings will not be included in preparation time.
 - c. Before and after school student help time will remain as pupil contact time and will not be counted as preparation time.
- 2. Teachers involved in Kindergarten and Fifth Grade Orientation at the beginning of the school year will be paid a minimum of one (1) hour at the instructional rate if it takes place outside of contractual hours. Not to exceed two (2) hours.
- 3. For the purposes of writing IEPs, time will be provided throughout the year by utilizing early dismissal days, extended meetings and inservice days. This time will be provided between February and May.

G. Extended School Year

- Certified Staff working in the Basic Skills, Extended School Year or any other program offered for students beyond the student calendar will be paid the instructional hourly rate. Certified Staff assigned as lead teachers will be guaranteed a minimum of one (1) hour of preparation time at the instructional hourly rate for each day worked. Certified Staff assigned as teachers will be guaranteed a minimum of one-half (¹/₂) hour of preparation time at the instructional hourly rate for each day worked.
- H. Teachers will indicate their presence personally anytime they leave or enter the building by placing their initials in the appropriate column of the faculty sign in register.
- I. At the sole discretion of the Superintendent, one (1) teacher per school building shall be designated as a Head Teacher who shall act in the absence of the Building Principal. It is understood that the hours for the Head Teacher will be 8 am-4 pm when performing the duties of the Head Teacher with at least twenty four (24) hours advance notice given by the principal, except in cases of emergency. In the event that the Head Teacher is unable to accommodate the emergency coverage, another building's administrator will be assigned to cover. Said position shall be posed annually. The Head Teacher shall be provided with an annual stipend. This stipend shall be paid on a prorated basis over ten (10) months.
- J. In emergencies, when a substitute is not available, the Administration may assign teachers from duties such as; lunch duty, library duty, office duty, RTI duty, BSI duty, or any other duty period to cover. Assigned staff preparation periods are to be used as a last resort when there are no duty assigned professional staff available. Administration will pull from the list of volunteers first and if no volunteers are available during that period, teachers may be required to cover. Professional staff who substitute during a preparation period shall be compensated at a rate of forty dollars (\$40) per period.

K. Extra Curricular Positions

- a. All extra curricular positions will be adequately posted annually by the Board in accordance with the following procedure:
 - i. When school is in session a notice shall be posted as far in advance as practicable, ordinarily at least thirty (30) school days before the final date when applications must be submitted and in no event less than five (5) school days before such a date. Teachers who desire to apply for such position shall apply to the Superintendent in writing within the time specified in the notice.
 - ii. Teachers who may desire to apply for positions which may come available during the summer period when school is not in session shall submit their names to the Superintendent, together with the position(s) for which they would desire to apply, along with an address where they can be reached during the summer. The Superintendent shall notify such teachers of any vacancies in positions for which they have stated a desire to apply.
 - iii. The qualifications for the positions, the duties and the rate of compensation shall be clearly set forth in the posting. When in the opinion of the Superintendent the qualifications of the position have been substantially changed, a new posting shall occur.
- b. <u>Selection Procedure</u>
 - i. All qualified teachers shall be given adequate opportunity to submit an application within announced deadlines. The Board agrees to give due consideration to the background and attainments of all applicants and other relevant factors.
 - ii. If the procedure set forth above fails to produce a qualified applicant from within the district, the Board shall seek a qualified outside of district person who is a holder of an appropriate New Jersey teaching certificate, but shall not require an appropriate New Jersey teaching certificate if it is not a necessary qualification of the position.
 - iii. Any outside person selected for an Extra-Curricular position cannot be compensated more than the rates set forth in the Extra-Curricular Compensation Guide.
- c. All persons employed in these positions shall provide a written summative report (template to be provided) to the Building Principal at the end of the season or activity.

ARTICLE IX SECRETARIES HOURS OF WORK AND TWELVE (12) MONTH SECRETARY VACATIONS

- A. Ten (10) Month Secretaries and Twelve (12) Month Secretaries will report to work at 8:00 A.M. and remain until 4:00 P.M. The Secretary work day is seven (7) hours. Secretaries will receive a one (1) hour duty free lunch break each day.
- B. All work performed in excess of thirty-five (35) hours per week shall be overtime work, provided however that time and one half payments shall only be made for time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a specific work week. Overtime must be certified by the Principal/Supervisor of the building.
 - 1. Overtime worked between thirty-five (35) and forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at the regular hourly rate of pay.

- 2. Overtime worked above forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half computed at the employee's regular hourly rate of pay.
- 3. All overtime will be rounded to the nearest one quarter (¹/₄) hour at the end of each pay period.
- C. Each unit member shall be entitled to two (2) duty free breaks from work of fifteen (15) minutes each in duration per day. The scheduling and the alteration of scheduling of such breaks shall be at the discretion of the Building Principal/Supervisor. Such breaks are subject to cancellation during an emergency.
- D. Secretaries will be required to attend three (3) evening events, specifically "Back to School Night", and Parent Conferences.
- E. In the event that teachers are granted an early dismissal on the day before Winter Break in any year, all Secretaries will be dismissed at 2:00 pm.
- F. Twelve (12) Month Secretary Vacations
 - 1. Twelve (12) Month Secretaries will be allowed one (1) weeks vacation with regular pay if hired by January 1st. After one (1) year employment on April 1st, the employee will be allowed two (2) weeks vacation with regular pay.
 - 2. Vacation days are not accumulative but a maximum of five (5) days may be rolled over from one year to the next. These days must be taken before September 1st of the same year, at the discretion of the Business Administrator.

ARTICLE X CUSTODIAN HOURS OF WORK, VACATIONS AND UNIFORMS

- A. The regular workweek shall be forty (40) hours.
 - 1. All work performed on a regular workday in excess of eight (8) hours shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half computed at the employee's regular rate of pay.
 - 2. All work performed on Saturday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half computed at the employee's regular rate of pay providing he works the Friday preceding the Saturday of overtime.
 - 3. All work performed on Sundays or holidays shall be paid at the rate of double time computed at the employee's regular rate of pay provided the employee worked the workday preceding and the workday following the holiday or Sunday.
- B. Custodians will be guaranteed two (2) hours of pay when they are required to report to work for snow removal on a non-school day.
 - a. A supplemental snow removal team will be assembled at the start of the school year, with priority given to Custodial Staff, seniority, and familiarity with the facility for instances when snow removal is required on non-scheduled days. Employees who report for snow removal will be guaranteed two (2) hours of pay when they are required to report to work for snow removal on a non-school day and be compensated twenty-five (25) dollars per hour.
- C. All employees covered by this agreement will receive one (1) week notice for overtime on weekends or holidays except in the case of emergencies.
- D. Require to work overtime- on rare occasions it may be necessary to order employees to work overtime. Seniority and familiarity with the facility will be considered when making this assignment.

- E. Custodian lunchtime shall be forty-five (45) minutes in length. During the days that school is in session, custodians will be expected to remain in the school for their lunchtime.
- F. Custodians shall be entitled to two (2) breaks from work of fifteen (15) minutes each in duration per day. The scheduling and alteration of scheduling such breaks shall be at the discretion of the Buildings and Grounds Supervisor. Such breaks are subject to postponement during an emergency.
- G. The Administration and Board can require the custodians to work eight (8) hours per day when school is not in session.
- H. Summer hours for custodians will be 6am-2:00pm.
 - a. Any custodian who assumes the responsibility of Head Custodian/Supervisor during the summer and after the regular school year will receive an additional stipend of \$40.00 per work day. The position will be posted annually and selected by the Buildings and Grounds Supervisor.
- I. Custodian Vacations
 - Custodians will accumulate no vacation for the first sixty (60) days of employment. After sixty (60) days of employment they will accumulate one-half (¹/₂) day per month for the first two (2) years up to a total of ten (10) days. Custodians with three (3) or more years of service will be entitled to vacation for each year as set forth below:

<u>Vacation</u>
12 days
15 days
18 days
20 days

- ii. Custodians will be able to sell back five (5) vacation days with approval of the Superintendent if notice is given before May 1st.
- iii. Vacation days are not accumulative, but a maximum of five (5) vacation days may be rolled over from one year to the next. These days must be taken before September 1st of the same year, at the discretion of the Business Administrator.
- iv. The Business Administrator in consultation with the Building Principal will be responsible for the scheduling of custodian vacations. Up to two (2) vacation days may be scheduled during the Christmas and Easter recess with prior approval of the Buildings/Grounds Supervisor and subject to seniority and the needs of the school district, provided that the custodian is entitled to at least seven (7) days vacation.
- J. All employees covered by this agreement will be required to wear uniforms during their hours of work. The District will provide the uniforms at the District's expense.
- K. The Board will assume all costs of obtaining and maintaining Black Seal Licenses.
 - a. As of July 1, 2022, all newly hired Custodian Staff will have one (1) calendar year from their date of hire to secure a Black Seal License. Failure to secure the License may be cause for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.
- L. Employee Classification Custodian
 - 1. Each new employee will serve a ninety (90) day probationary period after which the employee will be considered a regular employee.

ARTICLE XI TEACHER FACILITIES

A. The Board shall make available in each school a lounge for all Staff Members use. This facility may be put to other uses outside of the regular school day. When practical and possible, lavatory facilities exclusively for Staff Members shall also be made available.

<u>ARTICLE XII</u> <u>TEACHER EMPLOYMENT</u>

- A. No new teacher will be employed by the Board for a regular teaching assignment who does not have a Bachelor's Degree from an accredited college or university, and a provisional or standard certificate. These conditions prevail if satisfactory applicant is available at the time of hiring.
- B. The Board will use an employment contract to advise all non-tenure personnel of their employment. A tenure employee contract letter giving grade and subject matter assignment and salary for the next year will be used to advise tenure employees.
- C. Upon initial employment, the Board and the individual teacher shall negotiate and agree upon initial placement upon the salary guide. Such initial placement shall control future movement on the salary guide.
- D. Teachers with previous teaching experience in the Barrington School District shall, upon returning to the system, receive credit on the salary guide for outside teaching experience, military experience, or alternative civilian service required by the Selective Service System; credit is not to exceed two (2) years. The Board will comply with applicable State Law on military service credit.
- E. Previously accumulated unused leave days will be restored to all teachers returning from military duty, or civilian service required by the Selective Service System.
- F. Teachers shall be notified of their proposed contract salary and salary status for the ensuing school year no later than allowed by State Law.
- G. Teachers will be given the following year teaching assignment by May 31st, except in cases of emergency.

ARTICLE XIII VOLUNTARY TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENTS

- A. As soon as possible the Superintendent will post in all buildings a list of the known vacancies, which shall occur during the following school year.
- B. Teachers who desire a change in grade and /or subject assignment, or who desire a transfer to another building, may file a written statement of such desire with the Superintendent no later than April 1st. Such statements shall include the grade and/or subject to which the teacher desires to be assigned and the school or schools to which he/she desires to be transferred, in order of preference. This application should be renewed annually.
- C. In filing a vacancy with the bargaining unit, the decision of the Board as of the filling of such vacancies shall be final.

ARTICLE XIV STUDENT DISCIPLINE AND TEACHER PROTECTION

- A. The Board recognizes its responsibility to give administrative backing and support to its teachers, although each teacher bears the primary responsibility for maintaining proper control and discipline in the classroom. The teachers recognize that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked by them shall be reasonable and just, and in accordance with established Board Policy and consistent with the laws of the State of New Jersey.
- B. When, in the judgement of the teacher, a student appears to require special assistance, the teacher shall feel free to avail himself/herself of the services of the Superintendent, Principal, Guidance Counselor, Psychologist, Intervention and Referral Services and/or other specialist. The Principal will assist the teacher in scheduling the needed assistance and shall follow up and document the implementation of the assistance. If the issue under concern is disciplinary in nature, the District Board Policy, procedures, and student handbook will be followed.
- C. The teacher shall, upon request, be advised by the Principal of the disposition of the Teacher's report.
- D. Any case of assault upon a teacher shall be immediately reported to the Principal and Superintendent. Upon examination of the incident, if the Teacher, Principal, and Superintendent are in agreement, police may be called. In the event that the matter is criminal in nature or covered by statute, then the police will be notified.
- E. Time lost by a Teacher in connection with an incident mentioned in this article, not compensable under workmen's compensation, shall not be charged against the teacher unless a court of competent jurisdiction adjudges him/her guilty.

ARTICLE XV LEAVE

A. Sick Leave

- 1. Permitted
 - a. Teachers under contract will be allowed ten (10) sick days and three (3) personal days per year. All unused leave shall be accumulative. (A doctor's certificate may be required.)
 - b. Ten (10) Month Secretaries Ten (10) sick days and three (3) personal days leave per year. All unused leave shall be accumulative. (A doctor's certificate may be required.)
 - c. Twelve (12) Month Secretaries Twelve (12) sick days and three (3) personal days. All unused leave shall be accumulative. (A doctor's certificate may be required.)
 - d. Custodians Twelve (12) sick days and three (3) personal days. All unused leave shall be accumulated. (A doctor's certificate may be required.)
 - e. Staff will be allowed to use three (3) of their accumulated sick days from the prior school year for the purpose of family illness. For a new hire, the use of the accumulated days will begin in the second year of employment. Should a new hire negotiate the carryover of accumulated sick days from a previous district, the Superintendent has the discretion to grant the use of three (3) accumulated days for family illness.
- 2. A doctor's note will be required after an absence on the day preceding or following a holiday or vacation during the year.

- 3. For an illness of three (3) days or more, a doctor's note shall be required upon return to work.
- 4. When an employee's absence exceeds his or her annual sick leave and his or her accumulated sick leave, the Board in its sole discretion, may pay the employee his or her daily salary, less the cost of a substitute, for such length of time as the Board in its sole discretion, and based on the individual employee's circumstances, deems appropriate.

B. Personal Leave

- Employees may be allowed up to three (3) personal business days per school year (to be deducted from sick leave in accordance with Section A., paragraph 1 of Article XIV) with full pay, provided notice is given in advance to the Superintendent and permission is granted by him/her. The three (3) personal business days per year per employee can be taken without specification of a reason. The application for a personal day must be submitted in writing at least one (1) week in advance (except in the event of an emergency when a shorter notice may be acceptable).
- 2. A personal business leave day shall not normally be granted for the day preceding or the day following holiday or vacations, or for the first and last days of the school year.
- 3. It is intended that the three (3) day limitation shall be the total of all such days in any given year.
- 4. A personal day shall be taken as a full day with the exception of an emergency absence in the PM.
- C. <u>Bereavement</u> In addition to sick leave and personal days, the following bereavement benefits shall be available:
 - In the event of death of an employee's spouse, domestic partner, child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, parent, step-parent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother, sister, step-brother, step-sister, grandparents, grandparents-in-law, grandchildren and any other individuals residing in the employee's household, payment for absence will be approved. Ordinarily approval will not exceed three (3) days, but may, under special circumstances, be extended to cover up to five (5) bereavement days.
 - 2. Two (2) bereavement days will be granted in the event of the death of an aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, and cousin.
 - 3. One (1) bereavement day will be granted in the event of death of an individual not listed provided documentation is submitted and with the approval of the Superintendent.
 - 4. The bereavement leave available above can be taken during the period from the date of death through and including the day after the funeral. Under extenuating circumstances, the leave may be split with approval by the Superintendent.
 - 5. An additional two (2) days will be granted to any member who is Executor of the Estate to see to the legal business of the estate that cannot be handled during the initial period of bereavement.
- D. Maternity Teacher Ten (10) Month Secretaries Twelve (12) Month Secretaries
 - 1. Any regular appointed employee should notify the Superintendent of her pregnancy as soon as it is medically confirmed and not later than five (5) months prior to the expected birth. If a pregnant employee wishes to utilize paid annual and accumulated sick leave, the pregnant employee shall be required to work until the actual onset of disability. The period of disability due to pregnancy is presumed to be two (2) months, to be taken at the discretion of the employee. Upon termination of the period of disability, an employee may then request an unpaid maternity leave of absence in accordance with existing Board Policy.

NOTE: Compensation for the period of disability will be limited to the number of

sick days accumulated by the employee if they are insufficient in number to cover the permitted period of time.

- 2. The Board may place on leave of absence without pay any employee during pregnancy for any one of the following reasons:
 - a. <u>Performance</u> Her performance has declined from the time prior to her pregnancy.
 - b. <u>Physical Incapacity</u> Her physical condition or capacity is such that her health would be impaired if she were to continue teaching.
 - c. Just Cause Any other "just cause" as defined in N.J.S.A. Title 18A.
- 3. The Board shall grant maternity leaves of absence without pay to pregnant employees under the following terms and conditions:
 - a. Any tenured or non-tenured employee seeking a leave of absence for pregnancy shall make application to the Board of its authorized agent at least sixty (60) days prior to the commencement date of such a leave of absence. Said application shall set forth, in writing, the commencement date of the requested leave of absence with the requested commencement date, which commencement day may be any time prior to birth.
 - b. Any tenured or non-tenured teacher may return to work within the school year in which her leave begins, provided the teacher shall have requested to do so in her application for a leave of absence and shall have specified the month when the teacher desires to return. Any extension or reduction of the date of return within the same school year shall only be allowed at the discretion of the Board provided application is made following the original grant of the leave of absence but prior to the announced commencement date thereof. The Board may grant an extension or reduction of time for a reasonable period of time for reasons associated with the pregnancy or birth or for other proper cause, provided that such extension or reduction of time will not substantially interfere with administration of the school. Any tenured teacher granted a leave of absence with a return date during the same school year in which it commenced shall be permitted to do so if the teacher makes application at least three (3) weeks prior to the commencement date of her leave of absence and subject to the provisions of paragraph D(3) of this Article.
 - c. The Board shall not be required to extend the leave of non-tenured employees beyond the school year for which they were hired.
 - d. Any tenured employee may return to work subsequent to the school year in which the teacher's leave begins, provided the teacher shall have requested to do so in her application of a leave of absence.
- 4. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, no tenure or non-tenure teacher shall be barred from returning to work after the birth of her child by any prescribed waiting period between the date of birth and the date of return to work; however, each such teacher shall be required to file, at least two (2) weeks prior to the date of return or at the time of giving the required notice of intention to return, whichever is earlier, a certificate from her physician stating that the employee is physically capable of resuming her full duties.

E. <u>Military Leave</u>

1. Only if by law, shall be provided as follows:

Military leave, Reserve and National Guard. The Board, the Barrington Education Association and all employees shall comply with all applicable statutes, rules and regulations, and directives

of any and all governmental entities with jurisdiction, concerning the scheduling of military service, and the respective rights, duties, and privileges during and following such services.

- a. <u>Reserve</u>. Any officer or employee of a school district who is a member of the organized reserve of the Army of the United States, Naval Reserve, United States Air Force or United States Marine Corps Reserves, or other organizations affiliated therewith, is entitled to leave of absence from his/her respective duty without loss of pay or time on all days on which he/she is engaged in field training or activated during a crisis.
 - 1. Only "differential" pay (i.e. the difference between full pay and received from military training) will be paid.
- b. <u>National Guard</u>: All officials and employees of a school district who are members of the organized military are entitled to leave of absence from their respective duties, without loss of pay or time, on all days during which they are engaged in active duty, active duty for training, or for other duty ordered by the Governor, provided however, that such leaves of absence do not exceed ninety (90) days in the aggregate in any one year during times of peace. In times of war, conflict or national emergency the ninety (90)-day limit will not apply.
 - 1. Only differential pay (i.e. the difference between full pay and that received from the military training) will be paid.
- F. <u>Leaves for Personal Health -</u>
 - <u>Teachers, Ten (10) Month Secretaries, Twelve (12) Month Secretaries:</u> Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board may permit employees under tenure to take leaves not in excess of one year, without pay, for restoration of health, provided all sick leave has been first exhausted as provided.
 - 2. <u>Custodian</u>:

Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board may permit employees with three (3) full years of service to take leaves not in excess of one (1) year, without pay, for restoration of health, provided all sick leave has first been exhausted.

3. A doctor's certificate may be required, prior to the granting of such leave.

G. Childbearing and Child Care Leaves

Childcare leave is available to eligible teachers through the statutory FAMILY LEAVE ACT. During this leave no other contractual leave is inherent in this contract.

- H. Anticipated Disability and Continuity of Education
 - 1. An employee who anticipates a disability shall notify the Superintendent in writing of the anticipated commencement of the disability as soon as the employee knows it.
 - The Board reserves the right to regulate the commencement of anticipated leave. Expecting maternity leave, teachers whose disability leave begins within forty five (45) calendar days of the school year can be placed on an involuntary leave at the discretion of the Board. Time spent on unpaid leave shall not be counted for accrual of any benefits.

I. Leaves for part time Unit Members

Vacation, sick and/or personal time taken by part time Unit Members shall be charged as full days when taken, regardless of the length of the day the Unit Member was scheduled to work on the day charged for vacation, sick and/or personal time.

ARTICLE XVI NO STRIKE CLAUSE

- A. The Board shall institute no lockout of employees during the term of this contract.
- B. The Association agrees that during the term of this contract, neither it nor its officers, employees or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support, or suggest any strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slowdowns, mass registration, mass absenteeism, picketing or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference with the normal work of the Board and operations of the schools. In the event that Association Members participate in such activities in violation of this provision, the Association shall notify those members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall instruct the members to return to their normal duties. The Board may discipline any employee participating in these prohibitive activities.

<u>ARTICLE XVII</u> <u>TUITION REIMBURSEMENT - TEACHERS</u>

- A. The Superintendent may, in his or her sole discretion, approve reimbursement for courses taken if the employee submits a written request for such approval no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the first class meeting, and if the course meets one of the following criteria:
 - 1. The employee must be a matriculate in a program in the field of education; or
 - 2. The course is necessary for certification in a specific field of education; or
 - 3. The course is for professional development and is directly related to the field of education.
- B. To be eligible for approval and reimbursement, the course(s) must be offered by an accredited four (4) year college or university.
- C. Employees must earn a grade of "B" or better in order to receive reimbursement. No reimbursement shall occur for any course grade of a "C" or less.
- D. Reimbursement for mileage, meals, books, and other incidentals will not be permitted.
- E. The Board shall fund a tuition reimbursement pool during each school year of this contract in an amount of twenty thousand dollars (\$20,000) per school year. Total reimbursement for an eligible employee will be capped at nine (9) credits per employee per school year.
- F. Upon completion of a course with a grade average of "B" or better that has prior approval of the Superintendent, it shall be the responsibility of the qualified Unit Member to submit a Request Form for tuition reimbursement along with a certified copy of the transcript from the college/university of attendance no later than June 30th of the school year that the course was taken. In the event that the request is not made timely, the Unit Member will NOT be reimbursed.
 - 1. The Board shall have one (1) calendar year from the date of submission of the tuition reimbursement to issue the reimbursement payment to the teacher.
 - 2. At the conclusion of the school year in which the Request Form for tuition reimbursement and certified copy of the transcript are submitted, the total money available as outlined in Section (E) above will be divided by the number of employees taking courses subject to the nine (9) credit per

employee limit per year. Any staff member receiving reimbursement for tuition must maintain employment within the district for a minimum of three (3) years following the actual payment of said reimbursement, unless the contract for the staff member receiving said reimbursement is not renewed. (Prorated amount will be deducted from the final pay.)

- 3. A breakdown of the pay-out tuition reimbursement shall be sent annually to the President of the Barrington Education Association from the Administration.
- G. Purchase of Textbooks:
 - 1. In the interest of developing a current curriculum library, the Board may purchase from teachers textbooks that they have utilized in graduate level courses.
 - 2. It shall be at the discretion of the Superintendent whether they shall exercise this prerogative.
- H. Any changes in salary due to completion of additional college credits will be approved at the August or February Board of Education Meetings.

ARTICLE XVIII REIMBURSEMENT UPON RETIREMENT

- A. All Unit Members upon actual retirement, as defined herein, from employment as a staff member shall be reimbursed for the unused sick leave which that employee has accumulated while in the employ of the Barrington Board of Education, subject to restrictions set forth in this Article, including a requirement that any employee who wishes to receive such reimbursement must provide the Board with notification of same by December 1st of the year preceding retirement.
- B. The reimbursement shall be calculated at the rate of twenty five percent (25%) of unused, accumulated sick days times one half (½) of the highest salary divided by the number of workdays. The formula will read: (0.25 of sick days) x (0.5 of the highest salary/contracted work days). Retirement for the purpose of this article is defined and limited to actual retirement according to the rules and regulations of Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund or Public Employees Retirement System, with the application for and the current receipt of a currently paid pension at the time the unit member leaves employment with the Barrington School District. The member who is retiring may elect to delay payment of this reimbursement for up to one (1) year.
- C. Regardless of the number of sick leave days actually accumulated, in no circumstances shall the Board be required to pay supplemental compensation to any employee for accumulated unused sick leave in an amount in excess of \$12,500.00.

ARTICLE XIX PROCEDURE FOR WITHHOLDING INCREMENTS AND SALARY ADJUSTMENTS-SECRETARIES

- A. All advancement on the salary guide, including annual increments and/or salary adjustment, may be withheld in whole or in part by the Board, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
 - 1. Any such action shall be taken by the Board on or before May 30th of the year preceding the year in which the increment or raise is to be received. Grounds for withholding the increment or raise shall be unsatisfactory performance.

- 2. A Secretary must be given written notification by the Superintendent by March 1st of the intention to recommend the withholding of his/her increment or raise. Such notification shall contain the alleged cause or causes for the recommendation, specifying the nature thereof with such particulars as to furnish the Secretary an opportunity to correct and overcome the same.
- 3. Any action by the Board withholding an increment or raise in whole or in part is subject to the grievance procedure.
- 4. In the year following the year for which the increment or raise was withheld, such secretary shall be paid in accordance with the then existing salary guide as if an increment or raise had never been withheld, unless the Board shall take further action in accordance with the provision of this Article to further withhold any additional increment or raise in whole or in part.

ARTICLE XX AGENCY SHOP REPRESENTATION

A. <u>PURPOSE OF FEE</u>

If an employee does not become a member of the Barrington Education Association during any membership year (i.e. from September 1 to the following August 31) which is covered in whole or in part by this Contract, said employee will be required to pay a representation fee to the Association for that membership year. The purpose of this fee will be to offset the employee's per capita cost of service rendered by the Association as majority representative.

B. <u>AMOUNT OF FEE</u>

1. <u>Notification</u>

Prior to the beginning of each membership year, the Association will notify the Board in writing of the amount of the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessment charged by the Association to its own. Fees to be paid by non-members will not exceed eighty five percent (85%) of the above amounts.

2. Legal Maximum

In order to adequately offset the per capita cost of services rendered by the Association as majority representative, the representation fee should be equal in amount to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessment charged by the Association to its own members, and the representation fee will not exceed eighty five percent (85%) of that amount solely because that is the maximum presently allowed by law. If the law is changed in this regard, the amount of the representation fee automatically will be increased to the maximum allowed, said increase to become effective as of the beginning of the effective date of change.

C. DEDUCTIONS AND TRANSMISSION OF FEE

1. <u>Notification</u>

Once during each membership year covered in whole or in part by this Contract, the Association will submit to the Board a list of those employees who have not become members of the Barrington Education Association for the then current membership year. The Board will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph two (2) below, the full amount of the representation fee and promptly will transmit the amount so deducted to the Association.

2. Payroll Deduction Schedule

The Board will deduct the representation fee in equal installments, as nearly as possible, from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the remainder of the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid:

- a. Ten (10) days after receipt of the aforesaid list by the Board; or
- b. Thirty (30) days after the employee begins his or her employment in a bargaining unit position, unless the employee previously served in the bargaining unit position and continued in the employ of the Board in a non-bargaining unit position or was on layoff, in which event the deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid ten (10) days after the resumption of the employment in a bargaining unit position, whichever is later.

3. Termination of Employment

If an employee who is required to pay a representation fee terminates his or her employment with the Board before the Association has received the full amount of the representation fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Board will deduct the unpaid portion of the fee from the last paycheck paid to said employee during the membership year in question.

4. Mechanics

Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Association will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deductions and transmissions of regular membership dues to the Association.

5. <u>Changes</u>

The Association will notify the Board in writing of any changes in the list provided in paragraph one (1) above and/or the amount of the representation fee, and such changes will be reflected in any deductions made more than ten (10 days after the Board received said notice.

6. <u>New Employees</u>

On or about the last day of each month, beginning with the month this Contract becomes effective, the Board will submit to the Association, a list of all employees who began their employment in the bargaining unit position during the preceding thirty (30) days period. The list will include names, job titles and dates of employment from all such employees.

D. INDEMNIFICATION AND SAVE HARMLESS PROVISION

The Association shall indemnify and hold the Board harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits and other forms of liability, including liability for reasonable counsel fees and other legal costs and expenses that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken or not taken by the Board in conformance with this provision.

E. <u>DEMAND AND RETURN SYSTEM AND PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINING AMOUNT OF</u> <u>REPRESENTATION FEE</u>

The parties to this contract agree to utilize the following standard demand and return System as developed and proposed by the NJEA/BEA.

1. INTRODUCTION

The document sets forth the procedure that will be used to determine the amount of the representation fee that local affiliates of the New Jersey Education Association will charge after September 1, 1981. The procedure is designed to comply with the requirements of New Jersey and federal law, as those requirements have been explicated in recent court decisions, and the

Rules of the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission Appeal Board. It will be reviewed periodically and revised as may be necessary to reflect legal developments in this area.

2. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>

As used in this document, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

- a. "AAA" means the American Arbitration Association;
- b. "Changeable activities" means those activities engaged in by the local education association that is recognized as the majority representative and its affiliated parent associations, the relevant county education association, the New Jersey Education Association and the National Education Association, for which each employee in the bargaining unit lawfully may be required to pay his or her per capita share of the cost.
- c. "NEA", "NJEA", "CEA", and "LEA", means the National Education Association, the New Jersey Education Association, the relevant county education association, and the local education association (Barrington Education Association under this contract) that is recognized as the majority representative, respectively;
- d. "Representation fee" means the fee that an employee in the bargaining unit who does not become a member of LEA is required to pay to LEA to offset his or her per capita share of the cost of chargeable activities;
- e. "Representation fee year" means the twelve (12) month period from September 1 through the following August 31;
- f. "Unified dues" means the dues that an employee in the bargaining unit in the relevant job category (e.g., full-time teacher, full-time secretary) is required to pay to be a member of LEA during the service fee year, including dues that said employee is required to pay to LEA, CEA, NJEA, and NEA. When it is indicated in this document that a function is to be performed by NJEA, it means "NJEA or its designee".

3. INFORMATION TO POTENTIAL OBJECTORS

- a. Promptly after October 15th or each representation fee year, NJEA shall prepare for each bargaining unit represented by an LEA a list of the employees included in said bargaining unit who were not members of LEA as of October 15th. The employees on this list shall be referred to hereinafter as "Potential Objectors".
- b. Prior to December 1st, NJEA shall deliver to each Potential Objector, at his or her home or place of employment, a memorandum setting forth the representation fee that LEA believes may be charged to the fee payers for the representation fee year (this amount is referred to hereinafter as the "Association-Determined Representation Fee"). This memorandum shall explain the basis for the Association-Determined Representation Fee, and shall list expenditures for each major category of chargeable activities included in said Fee. This memorandum also shall inform each Potential Objector that he or she may choose to be in either of the following categories:
 - Category 1: If a Potential Objector accepts the Association-Determined Representation Fee as a proper allocation of chargeable and non-chargeable activities, he or she need take no further action. The Association-Determined Representation Fee shall be deducted from his or her salary in equal installments, commencing on or after January 1st.

- ii. Category 2: If a Potential Objector does not accept the Association-Determined Representation Fee as a proper allocation of chargeable and non-chargeable activities, he or she may challenge the Association-Determined Representation Fee before an impartial decision maker pursuant to Section IV below. The Association-Determined Representation Fee shall be deducted from his or her salary in equal installments, commencing on or after January 1st, and the full amount deducted shall be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account established in and maintained by the New Jersey National Bank pursuant to Section IV D below. Together with aforesaid memorandum, NJEA shall deliver to each Potential Objector a copy of this document and such additional information as may be necessary for him or her to gauge the propriety of the Association-Determined Representation Fee, including specifically the following documents:
 - 1. The budget of the LEA, CEA, NJEA, and NEA projecting expenditures of the current representation year; and
 - 2. End of the year financial reports for LEA, CEA, NJEA, and NEA indicating actual expenditures for the immediately preceding representation fee year, together with statements from an independent auditor or authorized association representative verifying that said reports reflect the actual expenditures during that year.

c. Prior to December 1st, NJEA shall deliver to the employing school district each Potential Objector a copy of this document, entitled the Demand and Return System and Procedure for Determining Amount of Representation Fee to be charged by Local Affiliates of the New Jersey Education Association.

d. Potential Objectors shall not be required, through payroll deduction of otherwise, to pay any portion of a representative fee until at least thirty (30) days after the information referred to in Section III B above has been delivered to them and their employing school district.

i. The date on which a representation fee payer actually begins to pay the representation fee shall have no bearing on the amount of the fee that he or she is required to pay. This amount shall be determined by the date on which the representation fee payer enters the bargaining unit relevant LEA. In order to be timely, the notice of objection must be postmarked or delivered on or before January 1st of each representation fee year.

4. OBJECTIONS TO AMOUNT OF ASSOCIATION-DETERMINED REPRESENTATION

a. Any Potential Objector who wishes to challenge the Association-Determined Representation Fee (Category 2 in Section III (B) above) shall so notify NJEA by mailing a notice of objection to NJEA Representative Fee, 180 West State Street, Trenton, New Jersey 08607, or by delivering such a notice to NJEA at said address. The notice of objection shall be in written form and shall include the employee's name, social security number, home address, employing school district and relevant LEA. In order to be timely, the notice of objection must be postmarked or delivered on or before January 1st of each representation fee year.

- b. If any timely objections are filed, NJEA shall, promptly after January 1st,
 - i. Ask the AAA to appoint an arbitrator experienced in public sector labor relations to hold a hearing to determine the percentage of the NJEA and NEA budgets for the representation fee year that shall be expended for chargeable activities, and;
 - ii. Provide the AAA with a list containing the names, social security number, home address, employing school district, and relevant LEA for each employee who has filed a timely objection. The hearing shall be held in Trenton, New Jersey, at a location and on a date to be determined by the arbitrator. Unless an extension is approved by NJEA, the arbitrator shall, on or before January 30th, submit to NJEA and each employee on the list a report that indicates the percentage of the NJEA and NEA budgets for the Representation fee year that the arbitrator has determined shall be expended for chargeable activities. (With approval of NJEA, the arbitrator may defer for subsequent issuance of his or her reasoning and rationale.)
- c. Except as otherwise provided in this document, all matters relating to the arbitrator's determination of the percentage of the NJEA and NEA budgets that shall be expended for chargeable activities, including without limitation, the selection of the arbitrator, the conduct of the hearing, and the issuance of the report, shall be dealt with in accordance with the AAA Rules for Impartial Determination of Union fees, a copy of which is attached hereto.
- d. Pending NJEA's recalculation of the amount of representation fee pursuant to Section V below, the full amount of the representation fee collected from any employee who has filed a timely objection shall be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account established in and maintained by the New Jersey National Bank. Said fee shall be sent to the New Jersey National Bank for placement in the escrow account promptly after LEA receives it from the objector or his or her employer.
- e. Any employee who enters the bargaining unit after October 15th but before NJEA's recalculation of the amount of the representation fee pursuant to Section V below and does not become a member of LEA within fifteen (15) days of such entry shall promptly thereafter be provided with the information referred to in Section III B above. If said employee mails or delivers a notice of objection to NJEA, pursuant to Section IV A above. Within thirty (30) days after being provided with the information, NJEA shall, to the extent practicable, arrange for the full amount of his or her representation fee to be placed in the aforesaid escrow account and for him or her to have an opportunity to participate in the hearing before the arbitrator.

5. RECALCULATION OF AMOUNT OF SERVICE FEE

- a. Promptly after receipt of the arbitrator's report, NJEA shall utilize the following procedure to recalculate the amount of the representation fee that may be charged by each LEA to employees who filed timely objections.
 - i. The percentage of the NJEA budget that the arbitrator who determined shall be expended for the chargeable activities during the representation fee year shall be applied to the NJEA portion of unified dues to obtain a dollar figure.
 - ii. The percentage of the NJEA budget that the arbitrator has determined shall be expended for chargeable activities during the representation fee year shall be applied to the NJEA portion of unified dues to obtain a dollar figure.

- iii. The percentage of the NJEA budget that the arbitrator has determined shall be expended for chargeable activities during the representation fee year shall be applied to the CEA and LEA portions of unified dues to obtain a dollar figure.
- iv. The application of the NJEA percentage to the CEA and LEA portions of unified dues is intended to avoid the rime, expense and burden that would be involved in presenting individualized proof as to the expenditures of as many as twenty one (21) CEAs and potentially hundreds of LEAs. This approach operates to the advantage of representations fee payers, in as much as an LEA, which is the majority representative charged with the legal responsibility for negotiating and administering the collective bargaining agreement -and a CEA- which is the first line of support invariably spend a greater portion of their budgets for chargeable activities than does a state association which has a somewhat more varied agenda.
- v. The dollar amounts obtained pursuant to paragraphs i, ii, iii, iv above shall be totaled. This total is referred to hereinafter as the "Impartially-Determined Representation Fee".
- b. Employees who have filed timely objections shall not be required to pay more than the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee. Based upon the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee, NJEA shall allocate any money, including interest that may be in the escrow account established pursuant to Section IV D above. In the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee is less than the Association-Determined Fee, NJEA shall reduce appropriately the amount paid by all employees who have filed timely objections. However, NJEA may, at its option, arrange for the employer to adjust the amount of future representation fee payroll deductions, or promptly after calculation of the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee pay to the employee in a single lump sum an amount that is equal to the total excess amount that subsequently shall be deducted for the remainder of the representation fee year. If the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee, the amount paid by objecting representation fee payers shall not be increased.

6. <u>MISCELLANEOUS</u>

- a. The determinations made by the arbitrator shall be used to calculate the amount of the representation fee paid by all employees who have filed timely objections, including those who because of late entry into the bargaining unit are not afforded an opportunity to participate in the hearing held pursuant to Section IV D above.
- b. LEA, CEA, NJEA, and NEA shall be bound by the determinations made by the arbitrator and may not challenge said determinations in any other forum. Any representation fee payer who has filed a timely objection may challenge the Impartially-Determined Representation Fee by filing a petition with the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission Appeal Board pursuant to N.J.A.C. 19:17-3.1 et.seq. NJEA may take actions set forth in Section V B above notwithstanding the fact that such a petition has been filed.

ARTICLE XXI PROVISIONS

- A. Due to a reduction in steps on the salary guide, a teacher's years of service may not equate with the steps on the guide that each teacher is on.
- B. Additional insurance coverage will be provided as follows:
 - 1. <u>Health Insurance</u>:
 - a. The Base Medical Plan offered to employees will be the PPO15 or HMO10.
 - b. Contributions to Health Benefits will be at Tier 4.
 - c. Opt out is not to exceed \$5,000
 - 2. <u>Dental Insurance</u>: The Board of Education will assume the cost of the premium, less the Tier cost.
 - 3. <u>Prescription Plan</u>: A family plan with the following will be provided for eligible Unit Members and their eligible enrolled dependents with the insurance carrier being selected by the Board. Retail pharmacy services require a five (\$5) dollar copayment for generic drugs and a fifteen (\$15) dollar copay for brand name drugs for each thirty (30) day supply. Employee Prescription Drug Plan participants may obtain up to a ninety (90) day supply for prescription drugs at participating retail pharmacies.
 - 4. <u>Vision Plan</u>: Provided as a component of the Board of Education selected Health Plan or as a stand-alone benefit.
- C. Health and welfare benefits are made available to all employees who are employed a minimum of half time.
 - 1. Eligible part-time employees in accordance with Board Policy shall receive single coverage with the option to purchase additional coverage for eligible family members. Full-time employees shall receive the same health and welfare benefits in accordance with the current negotiated contract.
 - 2. This coverage provision applies to staff members hired after June 30, 1991.
- D. Nurses and traveling teachers shall be reimbursed for required travel from district school to district school during the workday at current Board Mileage reimbursement rates.
- E. Any and all longevity payments shall begin with either the September pay period or the February pay period, whichever occurs first, after the employee actually completes the required term of employment.
- F. The Board will offer a banking benefit of Direct Deposit of paychecks for Unit Members.
- G. These provisions shall survive the expiration date of this collectively negotiated contract unless modified as provided by the terms of this contract and/or state statute.
- H. The Association and the Board will share in the cost of preparing and printing the Agreement. The cost to the Barrington Education Association will not exceed \$100.00.
- I. The Board will provide a Section 125 Plan with a Flexible Spending Account at the Board's expense.

LONGEVITY SCHEDULE-TEACHERS MEMBERS

Teaching staff members above step 9 as of 7/1/07 longevity shall be set forth in the following table.

After twenty (20) years of continuous service in the Barrington School District as a permanent teaching staff member	\$2000
After twenty-five (25) years of continuous service in the Barrington School District as a permanent teaching staff member	\$2400
After thirty (30) years of continuous service in the Barrington School District as a permanent teaching staff member	\$3600
Maximum Total Longevity	\$8000

Teaching staff members below step 9 as of 7/1/07 longevity shall be as set forth in the following table.

Seven hundred and fifty dollars (\$750) per year for eighteen (18) or more consecutive years in the Barrington School District as a permanent teaching staff member and will not increase with years of longevity in future contracts.	\$750
Maximum Total Longevity	\$750

Teacher Salary Guide

2022-2023							
Step	BA	BA 15	BA 30	MA	MA 15	MA 30	PHD
1	56,767	58,267	59,267	60,567	61,267	62,267	63,767
2	57,067	58,567	59,567	60,867	51,567	62,567	64,067
3	57,365	58,865	59,865	61,165	61,865	62,865	64,365
4	57,864	59,364	60,364	61,664	62,364	63,364	64,864
5	58,564	60,064	61,064	62,364	63,064	64,064	65,564
6	59,564	61,064	62,064	63,364	64,064	65,064	66,564
7	60,564	62,064	63,064	64,364	65,064	66,064	67,564
8	62,064	63,564	64,564	65,864	66,564	67,564	69,064
9	64,064	65,564	66,564	67,864	68,564	69,564	71,064
10	66,964	68,464	69,464	70,764	71,464	72,464	73,964
11	69,964	71,464	72,464	73,764	74,464	75,464	76,964
12	73,164	74,664	75,664	76,964	77,664	78,664	80,164
13	76,664	78,164	79,164	80,464	81,164	82,164	83,664
14	82,354	83,854	84,854	86,154	86,854	87,854	89,354
15	90,650	92,150	93,150	94,450	95,150	96,150	97,650

Teacher Ga		·					
2023-2024							
Step	BA	BA 15	BA 30	MA	MA 15	MA 30	PHD
1	58,180	59,680	60,680	61,980	62,680	63,680	65,180
2	58,480	59,980	60,980	62,280	62,980	63,980	65,480
3	58,780	60,280	61,280	62,580	63,280	64,280	65,780
4	59,280	60,780	61,780	63,080	63,780	64,780	66,280
5	59,980	61,480	62,480	63,780	64,480	65,480	66,980
6	60,980	62,480	63,480	64,780	65,480	66,480	67,980
7	61,980	63,480	64,480	65,780	66,480	67,480	68,980
8	63,480	64,980	65,980	67,280	67,980	68,980	70,480
9	65,480	66,980	67,980	69,280	69,980	70,980	72,480
10	68,380	69,880	70,880	72,180	72,880	73,880	75,380
11	71,380	72,880	73,880	75,180	75,880	76,880	78,380
12	74,580	76,080	77,080	78,380	79,080	80,080	81,580
13	78,080	79,580	80,580	81,880	82,580	83,580	85,080
14	83,750	85,250	86,250	87,550	88,250	89,250	90,750
15	91,650	93,150	94,150	95,450	96,150	97,150	98,650

Teacher Salary Guide

2024-2025							
Step	BA	BA 15	BA 30	MA	MA 15	MA 30	PHD
1	60,161	61,661	62,661	63,961	64,661	65,661	67,161
2	60,461	61,961	62,961	64,261	64,961	65,961	67,461
3	60,761	62,261	63,261	64,561	65,261	66,261	67,761
4	61,261	62,761	63,761	65,061	65,761	66,761	68,261
5	61,963	63,463	64,463	65,763	66,463	67,463	68,963
6	62,963	64,463	65,463	66,763	67,463	68,463	69,963
7	63,963	65,463	66,463	67,763	68,463	69,463	70,963
8	65,462	66,962	67,962	69,262	69,962	70,962	72,462
9	67,462	68,962	69,962	71,262	71,962	72,962	74,462
10	70,362	71,862	72,862	74,162	74,862	75,862	77,362
11	73,362	74,862	75,862	77,162	77,862	78,862	80,362
12	76,562	78,062	79,062	80,362	81,062	82,062	83,562
13	80,062	81,562	82,562	83,862	84,562	85,562	87,062
14	85,662	87,162	88,162	89,462	90,162	91,162	92,662
15	92,650	94,150	95,150	96,450	97,150	98,150	99,650

Secretary Guides

			0000			0004		
2022-			2023-			2024-		
2023			2024			2025		
Step	10 Month	12 Month	Step	10 Month	12 Month	Step	10 Month	12 Month
1	40,388	48,466	1	41,067	49,280	1	42,142	50,570
2	40,788	48,946	2	41,467	49,760	2	42,542	51,050
3	41,188	49,426	3	41,867	50,240	3	42,942	51,530
4	41,688	50,026	4	42,367	50,840	4	43,442	52,130
5	42,188	50,626	5	42,867	51,440	5	43,942	52,730
6	42,788	51,346	6	43,467	52,160	6	44,542	53,450
7	43,388	52,066	7	44,067	52,880	7	45,142	54,170
8	44,088	52,906	8	44,767	53,720	8	45,842	55,010
9	44,788	53,746	9	45,467	54,560	9	46,542	55,850
10	45,588	54,706	10	46,267	55,520	10	47,342	56,810
11	46,388	55,666	11	47,067	56,480	11	48,142	57,770
12	47,188	56,626	12	47,867	57,440	12	48,942	58,730
13	47,988	57,586	13	48,667	58,400	13	49,742	59,690
14	50,453	60,544	14	51,132	61,358	14	52,207	62,648

Custodian Salary Guides

Step	2022-2023	Step	2023-2024	Step	2024-2025
1	40,597	1	41,784	1	43,089
2	40,997	2	42,184	2	43,489
3	41,397	3	42,584	3	43,889
4	41,797	4	42,984	4	44,289
5	42,197	5	43,384	5	44,689
6	42,597	6	43,784	6	45,089
7	42,997	7	44,184	7	45,489
8	43,397	8	44,584	8	45,889
9	43,797	9	44,984	9	46,289
10	44,247	10	45,434	10	46,739
11	44,747	11	45,934	11	47,239
12	45,397	12	46,584	12	47,889
13	46,097	13	47,284	13	48,589
14	46,797	14	47,984	14	49,289
15	47,497	15	48,684	15	49,989
16	48,197	16	49,384	16	50,689

Compensation for Extra Curricular Positions

Positions	Stipends	Positions	Stipends
Band Director	1200.00	Band Director	1200.00
Elementary School Choral Director Elementary School	1200.00	Middle School Choral Director Middle School	1200.00
Green Team	1850.00	Student Council	1900.00
NJHS - 1	1000.00	NJHS - 2	1000.00
Graduation Director	1700.00	Clubs	38.00
Head Teacher Avon	1200.00	Head Teacher Woodland	1200.00
Instructional Hourly Rate	38.00	Non-Instructional Hourly Rate	27.00
Curriculum	35.00		

Compensation for Sports Coaching Positions

Soccer - Boys Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Soccer - Girls Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+
Soccer - Boys Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Soccer - Girls Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+
Basketball - Boys Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Basketball - Girls Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+
Basketball - Boys Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Basketball - Girls Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+
Baseball - Boys Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Softball - Girls Head Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	3100.00 3400.00 3800.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+
Baseball - Boys Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+	Softball - Girls Assistant Coach *Stipend determined by number of years in position.	1800.00 2050.00 2300.00	Years 0-3 Years 4-5 Years 6+

Term of This Contract

It is agreed that this contract shall be effective for a period of three (3) calendar years from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE BOROUGH OF BARRINGTON, Camden County, New Jersey, and the BARRINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, a New Jersey non-profit corporation, have caused these presents to be signed by their proper officers and their respective corporate seals to be affixed hereto this day.

ATTEST:

ATTEST:

Board Seal Board Secretary

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE BOROUGH OF BARRINGTON

Board Pres

BARRINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Anio Secretary

President

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned hereby certifies that, the form and legality of this employment contract has been approved by the Board's legal counsel, and that this employment agreement has been approved by a majority vote of the Members of Borough of Barrington Board of Education at its meeting of October 10, 2022, and has been made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Board Secretary